
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday, 10 February 2020. 
 01476 406080

Paul Thomas, Interim Chief Executive
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

    

Tuesday, 18 February 2020 at 10.00 am
Witham Room - South Kesteven House, St. Peter's Hill, 

Grantham. NG31 6PZ

Committee 
Members:

Councillor Jacky Smith, Chairman of the Council (Chairman)
Councillor Annie Mason, Cabinet Member for Communities (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Kelham Cooke, Councillor Barry Dobson, Councillor Anna Kelly, Councillor 
Adam Stokes and Councillor Paul Wood

Agenda
1.  Membership

The Committee to be notified of any substitute members.

2.  Apologies for absence

3.  Disclosure of interests
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

4.  Minutes of the meeting held on 4 December 2019 (Pages 3 - 9)

5.  Minutes of the meeting held on 8 January 2020 (Pages 11 - 12)

6.  Pay Policy Statement
The Committee will consider the draft Pay Policy Statement for 

(Pages 13 - 24)

Employment 
Committee

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


recommendation to Council. 

7.  Work Programme (Pages 25 - 27)

8.  Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent



Minutes
Employment Committee
Wednesday, 4 December 2019

Committee Members present

Councillor Kelham Cooke
Councillor Helen Goral
Councillor Anna Kelly

Councillor Annie Mason (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Jacky Smith (Chairman)
Councillor Paul Wood

Other Members

Councillor Robert Reid (Cabinet Member for Communities and HR)

Officers

Interim Chief Executive (Paul Thomas)
Strategic Director Transformation and Change (Lee Sirdifield)
Head of Organisational Change (Elaine Pepper)
Senior HR Officer (Jane Jenkinson)
Interim Principal Democracy Officer (Sarah Evans)

22. Apologies for absence

An apology had been received from Councillor Dobson.

23. Disclosure of interests

No interests were disclosed.

24. Minutes of the meeting held on 4th September 2019

The Leader expressed concern that there was no report associated with the work 
programme on the agenda and would raise how he would like this to look when that 
item was considered later in the meeting.  

3

Agenda Item 4



The minutes of the meeting held on 4 September 2019 were agreed as a correct record. 

25. Update on recruitment of Chief Executive

Since the recruitment of a permanent Chief Executive had been raised at the last 
meeting there had been positive steps to move the process forward.  The Leader 
referred to the background that Paul Thomas had been appointed as Interim Chief 
Executive in July 2019 until a permanent Chief Executive was appointed.  Solace had 
been appointed to facilitate the recruitment for the Council.  Solace was a well-
respected market leader in Chief Executive and Director recruitment. The process 
began on the 4 November 2019 following a meeting between Solace, the Leader and 
HR Officers.  The job had been advertised shortly after and it was currently available on 
both Solace and the Council’s websites.  He had worked with Solace on editorial for a 
management journal which set out what the Council was looking for and circulated a 
copy to the Committee.  Solace was also actively headhunting and using social media 
to encourage suitable candidates. The deadline for applications was 9 December 2019. 
The Leader stated that he had already taken calls about the job and had several more 
phone conversations lined up with potential applicants over the next few days.  There 
had been a good level of interest from Chief Executives and Directors from other 
authorities across the region.  After the closing date, Solace would review the 
applications and send a list to the Head of Organisational Development ready for the 
shortlisting process to take place with Members on 19 December 2019.  He referred to 
interviews being planned for Wednesday 8 January 2020 and his preference was for all 
Members of the Employment Committee to be involved in both parts of the process and 
felt that the same members needed to be committed to both dates.

Shortlisted candidates would take part in psychometric testing over the Christmas 
period and make a presentation at the interview. Interviews were to be held at Belton 
Woods Hotel.   

Solace would guide the Council through the shortlisting and interview process as well as 
provide support on developing questions and supplementary questions which would be 
shared around the Members.  

The successful candidate would be provisionally informed of the appointment on 8 
January 2020 but the formal appointment would be subject to approval at the Council 
meeting on 30 January 2020.  

He referred to keeping staff up to date on progress and had emailed all staff earlier that 
week.  

The Head of Organisational Development, Elaine Pepper, added that a procurement 
exercise was undertaken to appoint Solace and five companies had been asked to 
quote.  She advised that Solace was a market leader in the recruitment field and had a 
good track record.  She explained that Solace would support the Council throughout the 
shortlisting and interviews and they also carried out initial interviews with feedback.  

4



There was a query as to whether the Leader and Cabinet had given consideration to the 
type of candidate they wished to recruit to lead the Council.      

The Leader advised that the Council needed a dynamic and experienced Chief 
Executive to be able to lead on the Council’s priorities and multiple projects with a good 
understanding of the commercial world.  The successful candidate needed to be a 
leader who was a figurehead and a good communicator who was able to take people 
with them on their journey.  He referred to previous Chief Executive recruitment which 
had helped to inform this process.  The Council needed someone who could deliver on 
the change and transformation agenda and improve the culture of the organisation.  

It was noted that the process would also include meeting with the Senior Management 
Team.

It was AGREED 

That the Employment Committee be involved in the shortlisting on 19 December 
2019 and interviews on 8 January 2020 and each Member should advise 
Democratic Services to confirm their availability for both dates.

26. Corporate Management team appointments

The Leader requested the Committee’s approval on two senior management team 
appointments.  His report outlined proposals 

 To continue to manage the backfill interim arrangements whilst the recruitment to the 
Chief Executive post was in progress and looked to confirm the appointment of 
Harrinder Rai to the position of Interim Strategic Director – Growth

 To make a fixed-term appointment of the Interim Head of Legal to Director of Law 
and Governance and thereby end the cost of an external contract

The Interim Chief Executive supported the proposals and advised that Shahin Ismail 
was undergoing a constitution review and had reinforced governance in the authority.  
He also referred to Harrinder Rai’s contribution to date informally acting-up in the role as 
exemplary and gave his full recommendation for both positions.  

There was some discussion around issues related to Riverside flats, which pre-dated Mr 
Rai’s arrival with the authority, and the work he had undertaken to resolve matters.  As 
an aside to the discussion Members were advised that there was an inquiry in progress.

With regard to backfilling Mr Rai’s housing responsibilities during the interim period, the 
Interim Chief Executive reported that he had had discussions with Mr Rai and had felt 
assured that the heads of service would be able to cover these areas of work.  He also 
added that additional capacity was available in the Assistant Chief Executive, Housing 
Delivery, who had previously acted as Interim Strategic Director, Growth but had now 
returned to his substantive post.

5



It was noted that Paul Thomas, Interim Chief Executive, would return to his Strategic 
Director, Growth role once the new Chief Executive was in post. 

It was proposed that recommendation (a) be amended to reflect that the appointment be 
until the new Chief Executive was ‘in post’ rather than ‘appointed’.

It was AGREED 

(1) That the Employment Committee confirms the interim appointment of Harrinder Rai 
(Assistant Director – Housing) to the position of Interim Strategic Director – Growth 
with effect from 9 December 2019 until such time as a permanent Chief Executive is 
in post.

(2) That the Employment Committee confirms the appointment of Shahin Ismail (Interim 
Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer) to the role of Director of Law and 
Governance for a fixed term period of 24 months from 1 January 2020 with a review 
after 12 months.

27. Absence update

The Leader presented a report on a review of absence statistics for the period 1 April to 
30 September 2019; regular updates on this item formed part of the committee’s Work 
Programme.  He invited the Senior HR Officer, Jane Jenkinson, to provide an overview 
of the statistics in the report.  

The Senior HR Officer explained:

 That the authority’s average number of sick days during the period was 6 days per 
person.  The figures showed 34% of sick leave was in respect of the Street Scene 
Service and 18% in the Improvement and Repairs Service.  These services had a 
large number of manual workers and this employee group historically held a high 
absence rate.   Many authorities no longer had inhouse street scene and repairs 
services and therefore had lower absenteeism rates.  Should these services be 
removed from the absence figures, the overall rate would fall to 4 days per person 
for the same period 

 There had been a decrease in back and neck absence. This had been mainly due to 
2 employees who had long-term absences leaving on medical grounds, which had 
had a significant effect on the percentage for this category

 That the HR Team was continually working with managers on health matters. It was 
noted that termination of employment was considered where there was no early 
return to work.  They particularly targeted those service areas were this was an 
ongoing concern

 That stress-related absence had increased in line with national surveys. This had 
increased over the last 12 months. Some absences were attributed to changes to 

6



the business and service reviews but there was also stress caused by non-work 
matters

 The Council had introduced Mental Health First Aiders which was a confidential 
service and was accessible by all staff.  There had been stress awareness training 
facilitated by MIND and this had been well attended by staff and there were more 
sessions to be held in 2020.  There was also a counselling service available to staff

 HR was monitoring return to work interviews and these were currently at 
approximately 80% completion rate. First line manager training was to start shortly, 
which would include managing absence and emphasise the importance of return to 
work interviews

 HR was working with the Change Team to streamline processes in collating and 
presenting HR statistics

It was felt that the financial impact of absenteeism would be helpful for the Committee to 
know.  The Strategic Director for Transformation and Change responded that his team 
was developing HR dashboards for managers to understand the demographic make-up 
of their team, causes for sickness absence etc and build in a calculator that worked out 
the cost of absence for each team.  Dashboard results were currently being evaluated 
and would be presented to this Committee so that members could see the impact in 
terms of costs of lost time, temporary cover and productivity.

Members were concerned as to whether the Council was doing enough to help staff 
with stress and mental health matters.  However they felt that it was a positive step 
forward that staff  could admit to mental health issues and this meant that the Council 
was able to make plans to address these issues through training, support, changing the 
culture of the organisation in being more agile, modernising the workspace, better 
communications and improving the way people worked.  Mental health was identified as 
an area for the work programme and one Member asked whether it would be possible 
to gather data to show how much the service was being used without compromising 
confidentiality.

There had been a previous request at the June meeting for some statistics on work-
related absences and it was noted that these be provided at the next committee 
meeting.  Reference was made to a recent briefing attended by the Chairman and Vice-
Chairman, at which career prospects for staff were discussed. 

Action point 
It was requested that details from the recent briefing on career prospects for staff 
be circulated to Committee Members. 

The Committee noted the report.

7



28. Work programme

The Leader explained that his vision was for this Committee to be influential on all HR 
matters and therefore a formal work programme was needed for consideration at each 
meeting, preferably in a table format. 

There was concern that there were only 4 meetings of the committee each year.  It was 
suggested that for the new municipal year, 6 meetings could be scheduled.  

It was felt that staff were the Council’s most valuable resource being 75% of the total 
budget and therefore the Work Programme was a valuable tool to ensure the Council 
was getting the best out of this investment. 

The following was discussed and identified for the work programme:  

 Staff survey – there was concern that the results came too late to members to be 
meaningful and almost at the time for the next survey. Therefore this was to be a 
standing agenda item on this Committee’s agenda

 Return to work – it was felt this needed to be a 100% completion rate as this process 
provided protection for both employee and the Council 

 Review on staff training and development – to develop an understanding of how staff 
want to progress and look at other councils’ arrangements

 Member development – update on the budget and how to support Members.  HR to 
be involved 

 Induction process for staff 
 Staff reward and recognition – process on how to recognise good service  
 Employee benefits – what staff receive for working here
 Mental health – regular updates as discussed previously in this meeting
 Director target reviews
 Chief Executive recruitment
 Staff appraisals with performance targets
 Restructure updates
 Apprenticeships update
 Planning review – this was added to ensure that the Committee understood the 

impact on the Council and staff at lower levels

The Cabinet Member for Communities and HR explained that there was a significant 
workload for HR staff in this work programme and most of the items were already under 
discussion and being looked into.  He felt that much of it depended on the appointment 
of the new Chief Executive.  He felt there was a huge loyalty in the Council’s staff and 
with the appropriate support and development opportunities they performed well.  He 
referred to the reduction in general fund and that the Council would have to work more 
efficiently and deliver change but needed to take its workforce with it by ensuring they 
understood what the Council was doing and why.  He referred to current issues around 
recruitment in planning and retention of staff and that staff were the Council’s most 
valuable resource.  However to provide the HR support required to the Council and 

8



staff, he may need to request a further resource and would come back with a detailed 
report to the Committee should this be the case.

29. Close of meeting

The meeting was closed at 11.10 a.m.

9



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes
Employment Committee
Special Meeting
Wednesday, 8 January 2020

Committee members present

Councillor Kelham Cooke
Councillor Barry Dobson
Councillor Anna Kelly
Councillor Annie Mason (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Jacky Smith (Chairman)
Councillor Adam Stokes
Councillor Paul Wood

Cabinet Members

Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for Communities and HR

Officers Other attendees

Head of Organisational Development 
(Elaine Pepper)
Senior Support Officer to the Leader 
(Debbie Roberts)
Democratic Officer (Naomi Page)

Steve Guest (Solace)
Amy Billington (Solace)

30. Membership

The Committee was notified that Councillor Adam Stokes would be substituting for 
Councillor Goral. 

31. Apologies for absence

An apology for absence had been received from Councillor Goral. 

32. Disclosure of interests

There were no interests to disclose.

11

Agenda Item 5



Exclusion of the press and public

It was proposed, seconded and AGREED:

To exclude the press and public from the meeting during the discussion of the 
following item of business due to the likelihood that information that is exempt under 
paragraphs 1 and 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) 
would be disclosed to them.

The Committee entered closed session with effect from 2:03.

33. Recruitment of Chief Executive

Members referred to the in-depth selection process that had been undertaken 
throughout the recruitment period. This had been facilitated with the support of the 
recruitment specialists Solace. 
 
It was proposed, seconded and AGREED:

That the preferred candidate for the role of Chief Executive was Karen Bradford and 
that a recommendation be made to Council that the preferred candidate, Karen 
Bradford, be appointed to the role of Chief Executive

34. Close of meeting

The meeting closed at 14:06.

12



Employment Committee
18 February 2020

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke

Leader of the Council

        

Pay Policy Statement 2020-21
It is a requirement of the Localism Act 2011 that the Council produces an annual pay policy 
statement. This statement summarises current policies and arrangements already in place relating 
to pay – as such the Pay Policy Statement is one of fact. The Pay Policy Statement is approved 
each year by Council as part of the budget setting and approval process.

Report Author

Jane Jenkinson, Senior HR Officer

01476 406137

j.jenkinson@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative Not applicable

Reviewed by: Elaine Pepper, Head of Organisational Development 5 February 2020

Approved by: Lee Sirdifield, Strategic Director Transformation and 
Change 5 February 2020

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, Leader of the Council 5 February 2020

Recommendation to the decision maker

1. That the Employment Committee agrees the Pay Policy Statement 2020/21 and 
recommends it to full Council for approval

13

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 The Council’s Pay Policy Statement is reviewed annually to ensure that it accurately 

reflects the Council’s position and is aligned with the outcomes and objectives of the 
Council’s Corporate Strategy.

1.2 A review of the Pay Policy Statement has been carried out to ensure compliance with the 
requirements of the Localism Act 2011.  

1.3 The key changes include the updating of the posts included under the definition of officers 
covered by the Pay Policy Statement (paragraph 4).  

1.4 The Pay Policy Statement refers to the collective agreement that the Council has in place 
for local cost of living pay awards and the fact that we determine these pay awards locally 
for all staff, based on this agreement.

1.5 The Pay Policy Statement makes reference under paragraph 8.7 to a review of pay and 
reward arrangements that is taking place.  The purpose of the review is to ensure that our 
approach to pay and reward supports the objectives of the People Strategy to ensure that 
we can deliver “a flexible, innovative organisation” that has the “skills, resilience and 
motivation to deliver and achieve the Council’s objectives”.

2 Available Options Considered
2.1 It is a requirement that the Council publishes an annual Pay Policy Statement and no 

other options have been considered.

3 Reasons for the Recommendation
3.1 The reason for the recommendation is to satisfy a legislative requirement.

4 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision
4.1 Following its approval by Employment Committee, the Pay Policy Statement 2020/21 will 

be submitted to full Council for approval.  

5 Financial Implications 
5.1 The financial considerations of the Pay Policy Statement are incorporated into the budget 

setting proposals for 2020/21 and these proposals will be presented to Council for 
approval.  Employee costs are the largest financial element of the budgets and it is 
important that salary budgets are regularly reviewed to ensure that value for money is 
achieved. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance

6 Legal and Governance Implications 
6.1 Article 13.4.4(vi) of the Council’s Constitution, which sets out the remit of the Employment 

Committee states one of its functions as the review of the annual Pay Policy and 
recommending it to Council for approval in order that it can be published. The Council is 
required to produce and publish a pay policy statement for each financial year under 
Sections 38-39 of the Localism Act 2011. The Council must have regard to guidance 
issued by the Secretary of State under Section 40 of the Localism Act 2011.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Jo Toomey, Head of Governance

14



7 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
7.1 Council is asked to agree a factual statement. Any changes that affect the substance of 

the Pay Policy Statement would be subject to equality analysis.

8 Risk and Mitigation
8.1 There are no significant risk implications associated with the proposals.

9 Community Safety Implications 
9.1 There are no crime and disorder implications associated with the proposals above.

10 Background Papers
10.1 Pay Policy Statement 2019-20: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22340/Appendix%20A%20Pay%20P
olicy%20Statement%202019-2020.pdf 

11 Appendices
11.1 Appendix A –Pay Policy Statement 2020-2021

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not required

Previously considered by: Council 1 March 2019

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  2 March 2020

15

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22340/Appendix%20A%20Pay%20Policy%20Statement%202019-2020.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22340/Appendix%20A%20Pay%20Policy%20Statement%202019-2020.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



          

Pay Policy Statement
2020-2021

17



2

CONTENTS PAGE

1. Introduction

2. Legislation

3. Scope

4. Definition of officers covered by the Pay Policy Statement

5. Chief Executive Pay

6. Chief Officer Pay Determination

7. Lowest Paid Employees

8. Pay Determination Arrangements

9. Allowances

10.Apprentices

11.Local Government Pension Scheme

12.Pay Multipliers

13.Termination Payments

14.Re-engagement of employees

15.Gender Pay Gap Reporting

18



3

1. Introduction

1.1. South Kesteven District Council recognises that remuneration at all levels needs to 
enable the Council to attract and retain high quality employees dedicated to the 
service of the public. 

1.2. It is important that local authorities are able to determine their own pay structures in 
order to address their strategic aims and to compete in the local and national market.

1.3. It is recognised that senior management roles in local government are complex and 
diverse functions in a highly politicised environment.  The Council’s ability to continue 
to attract and retain high calibre leaders capable of delivering this complex agenda, 
particularly during times of financial challenge, is crucial.

1.4. The Council may amend the pay policy statement at any point in the year.

2. Legislation

2.1. Sections 38 to 43 of the Localism Act 2011 require local authorities to produce a Pay 
Policy Statement for each financial year.

2.2. The Act and supporting statutory guidance provide details of matters that must be 
included in this statutory pay policy but also recognises that each local authority has 
the autonomy to determine its own pay structures and pay policies. The Pay Policy 
must be formally approved by Full Council by the end of March each year. It can be 
amended in year and must be published on the authority’s website. It must be 
complied with when setting terms and conditions for Chief Officers as defined in the 
Act. 

3. Scope

3.1. This Pay Policy Statement includes a policy on:

 The level and elements of remuneration for the Chief Executive
 The remuneration of the lowest paid employee
 The relationship between the remuneration of Chief Officers1 and other officers
 Other specific aspects of Chief Officer remuneration such as fees, charges and other 

discretionary payments.

3.2. Remuneration in this context is defined widely to include not just pay but also 
charges, fees, allowances, benefits in kind, increases in enhancements of pension 
entitlements and termination payments.

4. Definition of officers covered by the Pay Policy Statement

4.1. This policy statement covers the following posts:

19



4

- Head of the Paid Service, which in this authority is the post of:
- Chief Executive

- Statutory Chief Officers, which in this authority are the posts of:

- Interim Director of Finance (covering Section 151 responsibilities)
- Director of Law and Governance

Non-statutory Chief Officers (those who report directly to the Head of the Paid Service) 
which in this authority are the posts of:

- Strategic Director Commercial and Operational
- Strategic Director Transformation and Change
- Interim Strategic Director - Growth
- Assistant Chief Executive – Housing Delivery 

Deputy Chief Officers, (those who report directly to a non-statutory or statutory Chief 
Officer) which in this authority are the posts of:

- Assistant Director Growth
- Assistant Director Environment
- Head of Finance
- Head of Organisational Development
- Head of Communications
- Head of Customer Experience
- Head of Leisure
- Head of Housing Services
- Head of Improvements and Repairs
- Head of Governance
- Corporate Projects Officer*
- Business Knowledge and Innovation Officer*
- Procurement Lead*

4.2 *These posts are included in this list for transparency as they report to a statutory 
chief officer but are not chief officers. 

5. Chief Executive Pay

5.1. The Chief Executive in South Kesteven discharges the accountability of Head of Paid 
Service – a statutory role defined by the Local Government and Housing Act.  The 
Council determines the level of pay for its Chief Executive through the Employment 
Committee. The committee and its remit are contained in the Council’s constitution.

5.2. The Chief Executive of South Kesteven District Council has been appointed as 
Returning Officer. The Returning Officer is an officer of the Council who is appointed 
under the Representation of the People Act 1983.  Whilst appointed by the Council, 
the role of Returning Officer is one which involves and incurs personal responsibility 
and accountability and is statutorily separate from his/her duties as an employee of 
the Council. 

20



5

5.3. Special fees are paid for Returning Officer duties which are not part of the post 
holder’s substantive role. These fees are payable as required and can be made to 
any senior officer appointed to fulfil the statutory duties of this role. 

6. Chief Officer Pay Determination

6.1. The Localism Act refers to Chief Officers. The Chief Officers at South Kesteven 
District Council are the following:

- The Chief Executive who is Head of Paid Service, the Section151 Officer,
- and the Monitoring Officer (the “Statutory Officers”),
- Strategic Directors,
- Assistant Chief Executives

6.2. The Council does not have a separate pay policy in relation to Chief Officers.

6.3. The Council pays its Chief Officers at rates based on job evaluation and these are 
detailed in the Council’s salary scale each year. The total remuneration package 
defined in employment contracts for the Chief Executive and Chief Officers is the 
same as all staff. It includes a spot rate salary or salary band, the same holiday 
entitlement based on length of service, the same sick pay arrangements, the same 
pension scheme arrangements and no enhanced remuneration elements are 
included.

6.4. The Council publishes senior management salary rates and gender pay details on its 
website in line with the requirements of the Government’s transparency agenda.

7. Lowest Paid Employees

The lowest paid staff within the Council’s pay structure are on Grade 1.  For this reason we 
have chosen staff employed on Grade 1 as our definition of the ‘lowest paid’ for the 
purposes of this policy.  Grade 1 for 2019/2020 is £16,731 per annum.

7.1. The terms and conditions of employment for Grade 1 staff are in accordance with 
collective agreements, negotiated from time to time, by the National Joint Council for 
Local Government Services, as set out in the Scheme of Conditions of Service 
(commonly known as Green Book).  These are supplemented by local collective 
agreements reached with the trade union recognised by the council and by the rules 
of the council. 

8. Pay Determination Arrangements

8.1. The level of pay for all staff is determined, except for the Chief Executive as set out in 
6.3, through the relevant job evaluation scheme. The job evaluation score determines 
the grade at which the employee is paid.

21



6

8.2. The Council employs all staff on local terms and conditions. It has a collective 
agreement in place for local cost of living pay awards that is based upon pay reviews 
by the National Joint Council and Local Government Services (NJC).

8.3. The Council makes its own determination of cost of living pay awards for all staff in 
accordance with this local agreement, taking account of the rate of inflation (current 
and Bank of England forecast), labour market conditions, the level of previous years’ 
cost of living awards and any specific budgetary constraints.

8.4. Where salary bands are used, appointment within these will be based on an 
assessment against the levels of competency required for the role.

8.5. The salary for newly appointed staff (including Chief Officers) is determined on 
appointment in relation to the job evaluation score for the post. The job evaluation 
score assumes full competence at the job. Where a new appointee for the job has 
some development needs, the Council may choose to place the employee on a 
salary progression until full competence has been confirmed or qualifications have 
been completed.

8.6 Pay grades are reviewed annually to ensure that the requirements of the National 
Living Wage are being fully met.

8.7 The Council’s current pay and reward arrangements have been designed to ensure 
consistency through the job evaluation process and with reference to the external 
market. A review is currently being carried out to ensure that pay and reward 
arrangements enable us to attract and retain the right people and support the Council 
to be able to deliver the corporate strategy and focus on growth, agility and 
competitiveness.  

8.8 The Council will monitor pay locally and nationally as required and will undertake 
market reviews in relation to specific posts. Where a post is hard to recruit to at any 
level, particularly where there are supply pressures, the Council has a process in 
place to consider applying market supplements, or to offer recruitment incentives. 
Market supplements are kept under review and may be withdrawn if market 
conditions change.

8.9 Local government elections and neighbourhood planning referendums are a separate 
statutory responsibility and rates of pay for local elections are set in accordance with 
a Lincolnshire County wide election scale of fees and charges.  These rates differ 
according to the size of the ward contested.

9. Allowances

9.1 The Council will pay job related allowances to staff where it is a requirement of the 
job to do so. Staff who are required to respond to emergencies outside normal 
working hours are also currently in receipt of standby and call out arrangements, 
depending on the nature of the work.

9.2 Overtime is payable at flat rate and can only be done with the prior approval of the 
line manager. Chief Officers and managers are required to work evenings and 
weekends to meet the requirements of the job.

22



7

9.3 The Council does not pay essential car allowances or provide cars to any individual 
member of staff as the Council operates a pool car system available to all 
employees. Where the Chief Executive, Chief Officers or staff use their own cars for 
Council business they are reimbursed at a flat rate of 45p per mile in line with the 
HMRC guidelines. The Council may review these arrangements in 2020-2021 to 
better support cost effective flexible working.

9.4 Honoraria and acting up payments may be paid for those staff who have taken up 
additional responsibilities for a defined period of time to cover absence, or additional 
duties. Where possible such payments will be based on the job evaluated rates of 
pay for those responsibilities. Each case will be considered on its own merits and a 
fair recompense will be calculated.

9.5 Temporary short-term appointments of staff will be paid in line with the job evaluated 
rate for the job and the prevailing market rate for such short term appointments.

9.6 Remuneration for staff on secondment will be in line with the Council’s secondment 
policy.

10 Apprentices

10.1 The Council actively supports the employment of apprentices. The salary paid to all 
apprentices is based on the National Minimum Wage in accordance with the person’s 
age and is increased in line with Government recommendations. 

10.2 Current National Minimum Wage rates are as follows:

Year 25 and over 21-24 18-20 Under 18
April 2019 £8.21 £7.70 £6.15 £4.35
April 2020 £8.72 £8.20 £6.45 £4.55

11. Local Government Pension Scheme

11.1 All staff who are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme make 
individual contributions to the scheme depending on their salary.   Contribution rates 
for 2019-2020 range from 5.5% to 12.5%. 

11.2 The Council makes employer’s contributions into the scheme, which are reviewed 
by the actuary. The employer contribution rate from 1 April 2020 is 17.5%.   

12. Pay Multipliers

12.1 Whilst job evaluation and the market determine the relationship between the highest 
and lowest paid employees, an analysis of pay multiples has been undertaken in the 
light of the requirements of the Localism Act 2011.

12.2 The Council defines its lowest paid employees in relation to their grade. This 
definition has been selected to enable fair comparison on a Full Time Equivalent 
basis.

23



8

12.3 The Ratio of the highest paid employee to mean salary per Full Time Equivalent is 
1:5.1 (based on actual salary paid).

12.4 The Council has no policy about the maximum or minimum levels of such ratio 
statistics.

13. Termination Payments

13.1 The Council recognises that staff leave the Council for a range of reasons, including 
retirement, redundancy, voluntary resignation, or employment termination. Where a 
termination payment may apply, each case will be treated on its own merit and will 
comply with Council policies and the law.

13.2 The Council reserves the right to make any appropriate payments to protect the 
reputation of the Council and manage risk of litigation. This will be in line with 
legislation and with reference to best value.

13.3 The Council does not have any specific termination payments built into any 
employee’s employment contract. It reserves the right to do so should such a need 
arise in the interests of the efficiency of the service.

13.4 The Council has a redundancy policy in place in accordance with current legislation 
which applies equally to all staff. Where redundancy payments are made to any 
employee the Council reserves the right to recover the redundancy severance 
payment.  

14. Re-engagement of employees

14.1 Employees who are offered another post with any organisation covered by the 
Modification Order Act prior to their redundancy leaving date and commence within 4 
weeks of leaving, are not eligible to receive a redundancy payment.

14.2 Employees who have been made redundant are eligible to apply for vacancies which 
may arise after they have left the Council’s employment.  Any such applications will 
be considered together with those from other candidates and the best person 
appointed to the post.  Any necessary adjustment to pension would be made in 
accordance with the scheme regulations.  

15. Gender Pay Gap Reporting

15.1 The Government introduced a requirement for mandatory gender pay gap reporting 
for public sector employers with 250 or more employees.   The deadline for 
publishing the data is 31 March each year.   The Council will be publishing its annual 
data in accordance with the regulations and report to Employment Committee with 
supporting commentary and any action points arising.

24



25

A
genda Item

 7



26



27



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 4 December 2019
	5 Minutes of the meeting held on 8 January 2020
	6 Pay Policy Statement
	Pay Policy Statement 2020-2021 (Final)

	7 Work Programme

